
N:\Planning & Zoning\Historic Commission\Minutes\2016\April.doc 

 

 

MINUTES OF TALBOT COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

MONTHLY MEETING 

April 11, 2016 
 
 
I. ROLL CALL   
 

 The regular monthly meeting of the Talbot County Historic Preservation Commission 
was called to order at 4:00 PM on Monday, April 11th, 2016. Those members in 
attendance were Mr. Ward Bucher, Chair; Mrs. Marsha Kacher, Vice Chair; Ms. Cynthia 
Schmidt, Mr. Robert Amdur, Dr. Dorothy Fenwick, Mr. Ronald Mitchell, and Mr. 
Robert Mueller. Representing the County was Mr. Jeremy Rothwell.  

   
II. CURRENT BUSINESS 

  
A. REVIEW MINUTES OF THE March 14th, 2016 MEETING - The minutes of the 

meeting on March 14th were reviewed, but because staff emailed out the wrong minutes, 
the TCHPC tabled the vote until the April HPC meeting. Mr. Jeremy Rothwell will email 
out the correct minutes prior to the next meeting.   

B. MHT CULTURAL RESOURCES HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT – Mr. Ward 
Bucher recommended that this item be tabled until the end of the meeting.    
 

C. DOCUMENTATION OF EASTERN VILLAGES - Mr. Jeremy Rothwell explained 
that he contacted Ms. Casey Pecoraro at MHT a couple of days after the March TCHPC 
meeting, and she stated that Ms. Beckley has contacted her, but has not obtained MIHP 
for the thirteen (13) required structures. Mr. Rothwell explained that he sent a follow-up 
email to Ms. Beckley relaying the concerns of the TCHPC, and stressing that she needs 
to apply immediately for the MIHP numbers. Ms. Beckley responded back in an email 
that Mr. Rothwell forwarded to the TCHPC that she would have all of the draft MIHP 
form completed and sent to the TCHPC by Friday, May 6th. Ms. Cindy Schmidt stated 
that she has been in contact with Ms. Beckley, and that they would both be going to the 
State Archives in the next couple of days to go through trade license records. Ms. 
Schmidt also relayed that almost all of the structures have been “named” and will be 
submitted to MHT for review very shortly. Mr. Rothwell explained that MHT is often 
very stringent in how structures are “named” for an MIHP record, so he encouraged Ms. 
Schmidt to relay to Ms. Beckley to get this taken care of as soon as possible. Ms. 
Schmidt also stated that she is going out to all the sites to take measurements of said 
structures. Mr. Ronald Mitchell questioned what work Ms. Beckley has been completed 
thus far? Ms. Schmidt explained that she was 100% sure that all of the structures had 
been photographed. Mr. Jeremy Rothwell questioned whether the photographs were 
taken in the correct file format; MHT requires that digital images for MIHP be taken in 
‘RAW’ format, as opposed to JPEG or TIFF. Ms. Schmidt stated that she was not sure 
whether the photographs were taken in the right format. Mr. Ward Bucher explained 
that the photographs also have to be in black and white and printed on a certain type of 
paper. Mr. Rothwell stated that MHT has a 20-page+ manual on how digital 
photographs must be taken to be accepted for documentation purposes; this manual is 
located online. There is a separate manual for completing MIHP forms, which is also on 



N:\Planning & Zoning\Historic Commission\Minutes\2016\April.doc 

 

MHT’s website. Ms. Dorothy Fenwick expressed strong concerns that TCHPC has paid 
Ms. Beckley $4,500, but has not received any completed MIHP forms, and also that one 
of the TCHPC members has been doing substantial portions of the work. Mr. Ward 
Bucher concurred with Ms. Fenwick’s concerns, but questioned Mr. Jeremy Rothwell 
what the TCHPC can or should do next, including what will happen if Ms. Beckley 
“defaults” by not completing the documentation in time? Mr. Jeremy Rothwell stated 
that because the first $4,500 was from last fiscal year that the TCHPC would likely not 
be able to recover those funds, but could likely withhold the $4,500 in the FY2016 
budget. Mr. Rothwell stated that he would have to go back through the contract and 
speak with our County Attorney as to what we can legally do. Mr. Ronald Mitchell stated 
that he is deeply concerned that we will not have adequate time to review the draft 
MIHP forms if they have to be sent up to MHT for review by the middle of May. Mr. 
Ronald Mitchell and Ms. Dorothy Fenwick recommend that staff draft a letter (approved 
by the County Attorney) to Ms. Beckley explicitly stating that if she does not submit the 
draft MIHP forms by May 6th that she will be considered in “default” of her contract and 
would not collect the second $4,500 installment as laid out in said contract. After 
discussion, the TCHPC unanimously recommended sending a certified letter to Ms. 
Beckley with the before-mentioned conditions specified hereon.  

 
D. FY2017 CLG GRANT APPLICATION – Mr. Jeremy Rothwell explained that he 

received the CLG grant application guidelines from MHT last week, and whose 
application is due by April 29th. Mr. Rothwell stated that he has started drafting the grant 
application, but has not as of yet finished it. Mr. Rothwell recommended do as before 
with the Cultural Hazard Mitigation Grant, whereby he would draft the grant application, 
and then send it around to all the HPC members for recommended 
additions/corrections, and giving Mr. Ward Bucher the authority to approve the final 
grant application. Mr. Rothwell stated that he is going before the County Council on 
Tuesday. April 26th to explain the grant proposal, and to obtain a formal letter of support 
as required by MHT. Mr. Rothwell explained that he spoke with Heather Barrett at 
MHT, and she stated a National Register District for Cordova would likely cost between 
$20,000 - $25,000; a cost which was confirmed in a phone conversation with Paul 
Touart. Mr. Rothwell added that we are permitted to request up to $25,000 in CLG 
project funding in this round of funding, which he intends to match with $4,000 in 
County funding which has been preliminarily budgeted in FY2017. If we provide at least 
a 15% in local funding, then our application will be scored higher at the state level. Ms. 
Dorothy Fenwick stated that Mr. Paul Touart completed an excellent National Register 
District Nomination for Oxford for only $9,000. Mr. Rothwell explained that we also 
have the ability to apply for up to $1,000 in CLG funding (separate from the CLG 
project funding) to attend the National Trust for Historic Preservation Annual 
Conference, or for the National Alliance of Historic District Commission Annual 
Conference. Ms. Dorothy Fenwick recommended applying for CLG 
educational/training funding every year. Ms. Marsha Kacher makes a motion for the 
Chair of the TCHPC be given the authority to approve the FY2016 CLG Grant 
Application. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ronald Mitchell, and passed unanimously 
by the TCHPC.  

 
E. FY2017 BUDGET REQUEST – Mr. Rothwell explained (as was put in an email that he 

circulated to the TCHPC the previous week) that $500 was cut from the $4,500 originally 
budgeted for documentation and survey work in the FY2017 Budget, but everything else 
stayed the same. Mr. Rothwell stated that the FY2017 Budget is scheduled to be 



N:\Planning & Zoning\Historic Commission\Minutes\2016\April.doc 

 

introduced Tuesday, April 12th by the County Council, and will have public hearings 
sometime in early May.  

     
III. NEW BUSINESS  

A. APRIL SITE VISITS – Mr. Ward Bucher stated that he would likely not be able to 
attend site visits in April. Mr. Robert Amdur explained that he has been unable to get in 
contact with a number of property owners, many of whom have been sold in recent 
months. He stated that Mr. Rothwell provided him the contact information for the new 
owners of Judith’s Garden T-172. Mr. Ward Bucher stated that he will send some dates 
in May for after his foot cast comes off. Mr. Robert Amdur recommended going to the 
Weber House in the village of Fairbank on Tilghman Island. Mr. Ward Bucher 
recommended doing a site visit to the Miller House, since it is now in a Historic Overlay 
District. Mr. Jeremy Rothwell stated that he went to the Miller’s House last month to 
take baseline photographs.  

B. MHT CULTURAL RESOURCES HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT – Mr. Ward 
Bucher explained that his term his up at the end of June after seven (7) years, and that he 
has decided to not seek reappointment so that his firm would be able to submit a 
proposal for the Cultural Hazard Mitigation Grant RFP. Mr. Bucher reminded the 
TCHPC that as a Certified Local Government (CLG), the TCHPC is required to have a 
majority of its members be qualified in historic preservation or architectural history etc. 
Mr. Rothwell stated that if Mr. Bucher leaves, than the TCHPC will need to find another 
qualified architect or architectural historian. Mr. Bucher stated that he spoke with Mrs. 
Margaret Garvey, who is a retired architect, or Mr. Charles Goebel, who has previously 
served on the TCHPC, or Mr. Mark Beck, who is a retired architect in Oxford. Mr. 
Jeremy Rothwell stated that Ms. Pamela Gardner and Ms. Christine Dayton have both 
served on the TCHPC in past years. Mr. Rothwell requested that the TCHPC members 
email him the names of potential qualified architects or architectural historians to take 
Mr. Bucher’s place. Mr. Bucher then left the room for the TCHPC to discuss the 
Cultural Hazard Mitigation Grant. Mr. Rothwell explained that the TCHPC reviewed the 
draft RFP at the March meeting, and has since made the requested changes and 
revisions. However, Mr. Rothwell stated that MHT still has not provided a contract for 
us to sign, but he did send staff at MHT a copy of the draft RFP for their review. In 
addition, Mr. Rothwell stated that in discussing the RFP with the grant administration 
staff at MHT, the TCHPC will be required to adhere to Federal procurement standards, 
and will thus likely have to make revisions to the RFP and provide a series of addendums 
with the RFP. Ms. Dorothy Fenwick questioned what the timeline is for the grant, and 
when everything has to be completed. Mr. Rothwell stated that as of right now, NPS will 
require the funding to be spent by September 30, 2017. As it stands right now (which he 
does not envisioning changing), Mr. Rothwell explained that the TCHPC would first 
contract with a qualified architectural historian to complete four MIHP district surveys 
of the four specified villages. Then, the architectural historian would identify all of the 
contributing structures within the four villages, and would recommend which 
contributing structures within the 500-year floodplain of said villages warrant further 
documentation. The TCHPC would then make the final determination as to what 
structures should be documented using the standard MIHP form and the new MHT 
Hazard Mitigation Form. Mr. Rothwell stated that hopefully the selected architectural 
historian will be able to complete the four MIHP district surveys within 3-4 months, and 
present to the TCHPC by September or October. Mr. Ronald Mitchell reminded staff 



N:\Planning & Zoning\Historic Commission\Minutes\2016\April.doc 

 

that we need to take Mr. Ward Bucher off the email list for all additional revisions of the 
RFP to avoid any potential conflict of interest.  

 
OPEN FLOOR  
 
Mr. Jeremy Rothwell stated that the TCHPC has the ability to contract with the Maryland 
Association of Historic District Commissions (MAHDC) to take one of six (6) 2 ½ hour courses, 
including HPC 101 Laws and Procedures, which we paid to do last year. Mr. Rothwell 
recommended perhaps having MAHDC teach HPC 100 Design Review. Mr. Rothwell 
recommended scheduling it in June. Because the class is limited to 15 participants Mr. Rothwell 
stated that he would need RSVPs from all seven (7) TCHPC members before he opens it up to 
Oxford or St. Michaels like was done last year.   
      
NEXT MEETING: The next meeting will tentatively be held on Monday, May 9th at 4:00 pm in 

Conference Room #1.  

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 5:15 
pm.  
 


